
General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 1 - 
 

 
  

  SOUTH  OF  MARKET  PROJECT  AREA  COMMITTEE  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 

415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 
Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 

  
 
 

GENERAL PAC 
Monday November 20, 2006 

6:00 PM 
 

Revised December 18, 2006 
           
 

Presiding Chair (6:05 PM)    

Chris Durazo 
 

Roll Call (6:05 PM) 
Present: Ingrid Aquino, Angelica Cabande/Bindlestiff Studio (\7:20 PM), Rudy Corpuz, 
Jr./United Playaz (/6:08 PM), William Curry III, Chris Durazo/SOMCAN, Andrew Hart (\7:20 
PM), Don Marcos/SOM Employment Center (/6:24 PM), John Markham, John Melone/SAN, 
Misha Olivas (/6:08 PM), Jason Ortega, Dipak Patel (/6:39 PM), Sam Patel, Charles 
Range/SOM Health Center (/6:09 PM), Raymon Smith and Mark Swenson 
                     
Absent: Sharon Grace, David Hammon, Jerry Longoria and Marie Romero 
 
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 

 
Agency Staff: Mike Grisso and Cathy Pickering 
 
Guests: See attached guest sign in sheet. 
 
Chairs Report (6:06 PM) 
Ms. Durazo thanked all members for attending the Victoria Manalo Draves Park grand 
opening ceremony. She stated that there were over 1,000 people in attendance. She 
referred to the Friends of the Park group and the Safety of the Park group and urged 
members to attend these meetings and for members to urge people from those meetings to 
attend the Health, Safety and Human Service Committee meetings. 
 
Ms. Durazo referred to committee attendance and announced that she would pass around 
sign up sheets for all committees. She reminded members that we have only two members 
on the Economics Committee and if others do not sign up, we may have to look at removing 
this committee. 
 
Approval of Minutes (6:08 PM) 
Motion: “To approve the minutes of the October 2006 General PAC meeting as is.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 12 No: 0  Abstain: 0 Motion Passes 
 
Approval of Agenda (6:09 PM) 



General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 2 - 
 

1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 
Motion: “To approve the agenda order as is.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 12 No: 0  Abstain: 0 Motion Passes 
 
Announcement of next General PAC meeting 
Ms. Durazo announced that the next General PAC meeting would be on Monday December 
18th, 2006 at 6:00 PM. 

 
Agenda Item 6. Redevelopment Agency Report by Mike Grisso (6:10 PM) 
a. Housing Developments 
Mr. Grisso apologized for his absence last month and explained that he is the Project 
Manager of the Transbay Terminal as well as the SOMPAC and there are times when the 
meetings conflict. He stated that Ms. Pickering would always be in attendance if he could 
not be here. Mr. Grisso stated that he would like to echo the comments of Ms. Durazo 
regarding the grand opening of the new park. He hopes everyone is excited and proud and 
that the park would get a great deal of use from the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Grisso referred to the 474 Naotma Street site and stated that the RFP is being re-
issued due to some zoning inconsistencies. He announced that the RFP would be re-issued 
on December 5th and the selection process would begin in mid February. Ms. Aquino would 
be notified of the new schedule shortly. 
 
Mr. Grisso announced that the Commission approved the Mercy Housing/Health Center 
project on November 7th. He stated that the Commission enjoyed the presentation and were 
very happy to support this project. They appreciated the support that the PAC gave to the 
project. Ms. Westbrook was in attendance as well as many of her family members. She 
was excited about the naming of the project as Westbrook Plaza. Mr. Grisso will provide 
updates to the PAC as the project progresses. 
 
Mr. Grisso referred to the article about the Hugo Hotel in the Central City Extra that 
everyone received. He announced that the Agency is in negotiations with the owner for the 
development of this property but the negotiations are confidential and he could not disclose 
any information at this time. He reminded everyone that the previous PAC voted on a 
resolution for the Agency to facilitate the development of this property. Mr. Grisso stated 
that the Agency would like to see the owner sell the property to a developer but at this time 
all negotiations are on the table. He mentioned the artwork on the building and stated that 
this has some value. Mr. Grisso will report information on this property to the PAC as soon 
as he knows the next steps being taken. 
 
Ms. Pickering announced that she met with MJM Management with regard to concerns that 
were raised at last month’s meeting. She referred to the palm trees and stated that the dead 
fronds have been removed. This took a bit of time because of the newness of the trees. 
They had to wait until it was safe to trim them. 
 
Ms. Pickering spoke with MJM with regard to the concerns around the litter at food 
distribution sites. MJM has been working with the distributor to alleviate the litter and what 
possibilities are there for the leftover food. Mr. Smith referred to the Salvation Army and 
stated that they use Styrofoam containers and this leaves a tremendous mess. You also 
have the Gospel Ministries that provides packaged foodstuff on Tuesday and Thursday. 
People that do not want the food toss it into the streets for the pigeons. Ms. Pickering 



General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 3 - 
 

stated that MJM is working with the food distributors to educate them and their clients and 
they will be using tables at the Bayanihan rather than the van for distribution. 
 
Mr. Markham referred to graffiti in the area and stated that graffiti vandals are now etching 
the graffiti into the glass windows and he wondered if there is not some way to assist 
business owners with the repairs, as this is very expensive. Mr. Grisso stated that this 
happened to Mythic Pizza and the owners have replaced the glass. He stated that there is a 
laminated film that can be placed over the glass and if someone etches the glass, you would 
remove the laminated film without harming the glass. 
 
A member of the public referred to a homeless man living on the Northwest corner of 6th 
Street at Howard. He stated that this man has furniture and many other things on the 
sidewalk where he has set up housekeeping. This member of the public wanted to know 
how this occurring right on 6th Street affects the efforts to revitalize the area. Ms. Aquino 
stated that she has met with Captain O’ Leary with regard to this man and that the police 
department is working on getting this man into housing. She stated that it takes time as this 
man tells the police that the corner of the sidewalk is his home and he wants to live there. 
 
b. Other Developments 
Ms. McNulty announced that Urban Solutions is working on a number of building 
improvement projects on 6th Street. The Sonoma Market and Henry Hotel are being painted 
and the Sonoma Market would be replacing the tile and awnings. Graphic Reproductions will 
begin work soon on new paint and signage. Re-Runs Used Clothing Store located on 
Howard at 6th is in the process of replacing the signs for the storefront. 
 
Ms. McNulty stated that the Baldwin, Park and Hunter Hotels are all in the process of 
completing quality of life upgrades to their electrical systems, fire sprinklers and restrooms. 
There is a Mediterranean restaurant looking to open in the ground floor space of the Hunter 
Hotel. This could take some time as the owner is looking to do all of the work himself and it 
is quite extensive. Mr. Melone wanted to know if the bathrooms at the Baldwin Hotel would 
be ADA accessible. Mr. Grisso stated that they were. Mr. Swenson wanted to know when 
the Credit Union was supposed to open on the ground floor of the Plaza Apartments. Ms. 
McNulty stated that they are scheduled to open in the spring of 2007. Mr. Swenson 
referred to the two-sided sign placed on the Sai Hotel advertising alcohol and wanted to 
know if this were legal. Mr. Grisso stated that if the Planning Department approved the sign 
then it is legal but he would check into this. 
 
Agenda Item 7. Ellis Act Resolution by Raymon Smith (6:35 PM) 
Ms. Durazo announced that the repeal of the Ellis Act discussed last month was sent to the 
Housing Committee for review. She stated that Mr. Smith, the newly elected chair of the 
Housing Committee would report on this item.  
 
Mr. Smith announced that the Housing Committee met on November 6th and spent time 
discussing whether to take a stand on the Ellis Act. He stated that members had expressed 
concern about the PAC becoming involved in political issues and he wanted to remind 
members of a quote when the Declaration of Independence was being drafted “When the 
government does not serve the needs of the people, it is up to the people to change 
government.” 
 
Mr. Smith stated that everyone received information regarding the pros and cons of the Ellis 
Act in this month’s packet. He stated that the impact on renters is felt throughout the city. 
The Ellis Act boils down to someone being given 30 days to move so the property could be 



General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 4 - 
 

turned into a condo. Mr. Smith stated that the Housing Committee is asking the PAC to vote 
to endorse the repeal of the Ellis Act and members could sign a petition as individuals. 
 
Mr. Melone announced that through his work at SAN, they began working to repeal the Ellis 
Act just three weeks ago but already have over 500 organizations statewide supporting their 
efforts. He stated that the only thing he could find from the small property owners in 
opposition was a statement that stated, “It appears the saber rattling rent activists are rising 
against the small property owners again.” Mr. Melone stated that the small property owners 
are hiring paid lobbyists to maintain the Ellis Act. 
 
Mr. Curry stated that this is a political issue and he believes that the PAC should not get 
involved in political issues nor should we be involved in religious or moral issues. He stated 
that he is not comfortable with this. Ms. Aquino pointed out that Mr. Grisso stated that it 
was okay for the PAC to be involved in political issues. Mr. Curry responded that he knows 
we could be involved but he does not think we should. If we are involved in one issue it just 
opens the door to all kinds of other issues. Mr. Swenson stated that he would urge a no 
vote for the reasons stated by Mr. Curry. 
 
Mr. Marcos wanted to know if there is a deadline for this legislation. Ms. Durazo stated it is 
a petition that is being sent to the legislature. Ms. Cabande stated that there are a lot of 
people in this area being evicted under the Ellis Act. Mr. Marcos wanted to know if we were 
voting to sign a petition. Mr. Melone stated that we are voting on a resolution to sign onto 
the petition that will then be sent to the legislature. Mr. Smith stated that we have to take a 
position on issues as they affect us, and the larger community. The Ellis Act is devastating 
to our community. These people have nowhere to go when they are evicted. There was a 
discussion regarding Ellis Act evictions. Mr. Corpuz stated that this is the first he has heard 
of this and he would like a quick explanation. Ms. Durazo explained that the Ellis Act is a 
way for small property owners to get out of the rental business. 
 
Mr. Dipak Patel stated that the Ellis Act is not just about evicting people but allowing people 
to become homeowners. There is already legislation in place to curb the speculators and to 
provide compensation to the evicted renters.  
 
Ms. Durazo announced that she would cede the chair of the meeting to Mr. Range for the 
duration of this agenda item. 
 
Ms. Durazo stated that in her work experience in this area a large number of property is 
condo-mapped and most new housing built in this area are condos. There is not a lot of 
rental housing left. Mr. Curry stated that he still feels the PAC as a body should not be 
voting on this but individuals on their own who feel strongly about this could sign the petition. 
Mr. Melone stated that this is a human rights issue, not a political issue. He stated that the 
people being evicted have been in their homes for 40-50 years paying rent. Mr. Swenson 
wanted to know if this resolution were only about forty year renters because people could be 
Ellis Acted out of their homes after renting for two years. Mr. Swenson made a motion to 
support the Ellis Act. After a discussion Mr. Swenson withdrew the motion. Ms. Cabande 
made a motion and Mr. Markham seconded the motion. 
Motion: The PAC endorses and signs the resolution to repeal the Ellis Act.” 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Those voting Yes: Ingrid Aquino, Angelica Cabande/Bindlestiff Studio, Rudy Corpuz, 
Jr./United Playaz, Chris Durazo/SOMCAN, Don Marcos/SOM Employment Center, 



General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 5 - 
 

John Markham, John Melone/SAN, Misha Olivas, Jason Ortega, Charles Range/SOM 
Health Center and Raymon Smith 
 
Those voting No: William Curry III, Dipak Patel, Sam Patel and Mark Swenson 
 
Those Abstaining: Andrew Hart 
 
Vote:  Yes: 11 No: 4  Abstain: 1  Motion Passes 

 
Agenda Item 8. Parliamentary Courtesy Presentation by John Melone (7:10 PM) 
Mr. Melone announced that he has prepared a brief skit regarding parliamentary courtesy. 
Ms. Durazo, Ms. Aquino and Mr. Smith participated in the brief skit. 
 
Mr. Melone explained that the skit shows that under Roberts Rules of Order if someone 
“thirds” a motion, they are really asking to table the motion. Mr. Range reminded everyone 
that no matter how silly we might think a motion is, we must still go through the process. 

 
Agenda Item 9. Committee Reports by Committee Chairs (7:15 PM) 
Ms. Aquino announced that the Health, Safety and Human Services Committee met on 
November 8th, where she was appointed temporary chair. There was a discussion regarding 
the best time to meet and increasing membership so that they could elect a permanent chair 
at the next meeting. As chair of the committee Ms. Aquino announced that she would 
attend the Southern Station’s Police Community Relations Forum and the Friends of the 
Park group for Victoria Manalo Draves Park. Mr. Smith handed out a map of the area and 
requested everyone to place three green dots on the intersections that they feel are the 
most dangerous for pedestrians with bicycles riding on the sidewalk. He stated that they 
would like to have signs posted warning bicycles that they must ride in the street. 
 
Mr. Smith announced that the Housing Committee met on November 6th where he was 
elected chair of the committee. They discussed agenda item 7 and made a recommendation 
to the full PAC.  
 
PAC Comment on Non Agenda Items (7:25 PM) 
Mr. Markham announced the upcoming meeting at Club Six regarding noise abatement. 
The Entertainment Commission, Police Department and neighbors would meet at Club Six 
located at 60 6th Street tomorrow evening at 7:00 PM. 
 
Mr. Melone wanted to remind members that SAN has a federal grant for pedestrian safety 
and everyone is invited to the monthly meeting held on the third Monday of the month at 
10:30 AM. The office is located at 935 Mission Street, 7th Floor, room 700. 
 
Mr. Corpuz announced that his youth program would be giving away free turkeys to anyone 
requesting one for Thanksgiving. He asked that anyone who knows of someone that might 
need a turkey please contact him and the youth would deliver the turkeys. 
 
Ms. Durazo referred to the meeting with other groups regarding the Eastern Neighborhoods 
and stated that all groups have agreed to meet at the end of January or mid February. Mr. 
Meko from the Western SOMA Citizens Planning Task Force has requested that we submit 
questions ahead of time. All members are urged to submit their questions to Ms. Ban or to 
bring them to committee meetings. Ms. Durazo stated that she would send a reminder as 
the time nears.  
 



General PAC/minutes (22 November 06)  

 - 6 - 
 

Public Comment (7:31 PM) 
 

Meeting Adjourned (7:31 PM) 
 

Chris Durazo 
Chair 

 


